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JANET M. HEROLD, Regional Solicitor

DANIELLE L. JABERG, Counsel for ERISA

California State Bar No. 256653

NORMAN E. GARCIA, Senior Trial Attorney

California State Bar No. 215626
Office of the Solicitor

United States Department of Labor
90 7th Street, Suite 3-700

San Francisco, California 94103

Telephone: (415) 625-7747
Facsimile: (415) 625-7772

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORMIA -

.
—

Attorneys for THOMAS E. PEREZ, Secretary of Labor,

United States Department of Labor

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA ~ LOS ANGELES DIVISION

THOMAS E. PEREZ , Secretary of
Labor, United States Department of
Labor,

Plaintiff,

VS.

WELDING UNLIMITED, INC., a
corporation; DAVID R. SHIELDS, an
individual; WELDING UNLIMITED,
INC. 401(K) Profit Sharing Plan, an
employee pension benefit plan,

Defendant.
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) COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF
ERISA
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Plaintiff Thomas E. Perez, Secretary of Labor, United States Department of

Labor (the “Secretary™), alleges:
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SDICTION

1. This action arises under Title I of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”), as amended, 29 U.S.C. §§ 1001-1191c, and is brought
by the Secretary under ERISA §§ 502(a)(2) and (5), 29 U.S.C. §§ 1132(a)(2) and (5), to
enjoin acts and practices which violate the provisions of Title I of ERISA, to obtain
appropriate equitable relief for breaches of fiduciary duty under ERISA § 409, 29 U.S.C.
§ 1109, and to obtain such further equitable relief as may be appropriate to redress and
to enforce the provisions of Title I of ERISA.

2. This court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to ERISA § 502(e)(1),
29 U.S.C. § 1132(e)(1).

3. Venue of this action lies in the Central District of California, pursuant to
ERISA § 502(¢)(2), 29 U.S.C. § 1132(e)(2), because the Welding Unlimited, Inc.
401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (the “Plan”) that Defendant Welding Unlimited, Inc.
(“Welding”) established was administered in Los Angeles County, California, within
this district.

DEFENDANTS AND FIDUCIARIES

4. The Plan is, and was at all relevant times to this Complaint, an employee
benefit plan within the meaning of ERISA § 3(3), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(3). Accordingly,
the Plan is subject to the provisions of Title I of the Act, pursuant to ERISA § 4(a), 29
U.S.C. § 1003(a). The Plan was established and maintained by an employer engaged
in commerce or in industries or activities affecting commerce and is subject to Title I
of ERISA pursuant to ERISA §§ 4(a)(!) and 401, 29 U.S.C. §§ 1003(a)(1) and
1101(a). During all times relevant to this Complaint, the Plan has been administered in

Los Angeles County, California.
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5. Atall times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant Welding was and is the
sponsor and Plan Administrator of the Plan, a fiduciary of this Plan within the meaning
of ERISA § 3(21)(A)(i) and (iii), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(21)(A)(i) and (iii), and a party in
interest to this Plan within the meaning of ERISA § 3(14)(A) and (C), 29 U.S.C. §
1002(14)(A) and (C).

6.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant David Shields: (1) was
an Officer and majority owner of Welding; (2) was and is a named Trustee of the Plan:
(3) exercised discretionary control and authority over the management and disposition
of assets of the Plan; (4) was and is a fiduciary of the Plan, as that term is defined in
ERISA § 3(21), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(21); and (5) was and is a party in interest to the Plan,
as that term is defined in ERISA § 3(14)(A), (E) and (H), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(14)(A), (E)
and (H).

Ik The Plan is named as a Defendant herein pursuant to Rule 19(a) of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, solely to assure that complete relief can be granted.

ALLEGATIONS: VIOLATIONS OF ERISA

8. Paragraphs | through 7 above are realleged and incorporated herein by
reference.

9.  The Plan was established effective January 1, 2007 by Defendant Welding.

10.  The governing Plan documents for the Plan identify Defendant Welding as
the Plan Administrator.

11.  The governing Plan documents for the Plan identify Defendant David
Shields as the Trustee of the Plan.

12.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint,, Defendant David Shields signed

governing Plan documents for the Plan.
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13. At all times relevant to this Complaint,, Defendants David Shields and
Welding exercised pervasive control over the administration of the Plan.

14.  From January 1, 2008, through and including December 31, 2008,
Defendants David Shields and Welding failed to remit $38,940.76 in employee
contributions withheld from employee paychecks to the Plan.

15. Instead of remitting this $38,940.76 in employee contributions to the Plan,
this money remained in Defendant Welding’s bank account and was used by Defendants
David Shields and Welding to pay the financial obligations of Defendant Welding.

16.  As of the date of this Complaint, Defendants David Shields and Welding
have not remitted the aforementioned $38,940.76 in employee contributions to the Plan
or any lost-opportunity costs suffered as a direct result of the failure to remit same.’

17. By the conduct described in paragraphs 8-16 above, Defendants David
Shields and Welding:

a. caused the assets of the Plan to inure to the benefit of an employer, in
violation of ERISA § 403(c)(1), 29 U.S.C. § 1103(c)(1);

b. failed to discharge their fiduciary duties with respect to the Plan
solely in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries and for the exclusive purpose
of providing benefits to participants and beneficiaries and defraying reasonable expenses
of administering the Plan, in violation of ERISA § 404(a)(1)(A), 29 U.S.C. §
1104(a)(1)(A);

c.  failed to discharge their fiduciary duties with respect to the Plan with

! The Plan suffered $2,726.22 in lost-opportunity costs calculated from the date that the employee
elective deferral contributions were due to the date that Defendant David Shields filed for bankruptcy
protection on August 18, 2010. The Plan also suffered an additional $3,176.14 in lost-opportunity costs
calculated from the date the Bankruptcy Court ordered the $38,940.76 debt to be Plan to be non-
dischargeable (April 15, 2011) to September 30, 2013. The Plan will continue to accrue lost-
opportunity costs until such time as all Plan losses, to include the lost-opportunity costs, are fully
restored.
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the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a
prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the
conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, in violation of ERISA §
404(a)(1)(B), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)(B);

d.  caused the Plan to engage in transactions which they
knew or should have known constituted the lending of money or other extensions of
credit between the Plan, and parties in interest to the Plan in violation of ERISA §
406(a)(1)(B), 29 U.S.C. § 1106(a)(1)(B);

e.  caused the Plan to engage in transactions which they knew or should
have known constituted a transfer to, or use by, or for the benefit of, parties in interest,
of assets of the Plan in violation of ERISA § 406(a)(1)(D), 29 U.S.C. § 1106(a)(1)(D);

f. dealt with assets of the Plan in their own interest or for their own
account, in violation of ERISA § 406(b)(1), 29 U.S.C. § 1106(b)(1);

g.  intheir individual or other capacity, acted in a transaction involving
the Plan on behalf of a party (or represented a party) whose interests were adverse to the
interests of the Plan or the interests of the Plan’s participants or beneficiaries, in
violation of ERISA § 406(b)(2),

29 U.S.C. § 1106(b)(2); and

h.  participated knowingly in the breaches of fiduciary duty of other

fiduciaries and/or had knowledge of such breaches by a co-fiduciary and failed to take

reasonable efforts to remedy such breaches, in violation of ERISA § 405(a), 29 U.S.C. §
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1105(2).

18. By the conduct described in paragraphs 8-16 above, Defendant Welding
failed to act in accordance with the documents and instruments governing the Plan
which required it pay employee elective deferral contributions to the trustee, in violation
of ERISA § 404(a)(1)(D), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)}(D);

19. Defendant Welding is liable as a co-fiduciary pursuant to ERISA § 405(a),
29 US.C. § 1105(a), for the violations alleged in Paragraphs 6 through 17 above because
(i) Welding knowingly participated in, or knowingly undertook to conceal, acts or
omissions, of Defendant David Shields; (ii) Welding enabled Defendant David Shields
to commit such breaches by its failure to comply with § 404(a)(1)(A), (B) and (D), 11
U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)(A) and (D), in the administration of its specific responsibilities
which gave rise to its status as a fiduciary; and (iii) Welding had knowledge of
Defendant David Shield’s fiduciary breaches and failed to make reasonable efforts under
the circumstances to remedy such breaches.

20.  Defendant David Shields is liable as a co-fiduciary pursuant to ERISA §
405(a), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a), for the violations alleged in Paragraphs 6 through 18 above
because (i) he knowingly participated in, or knowingly undertook to conceal, acts or
omissions, of Defendant Welding; (ii) he enabled Defendant Welding to commit such
breaches by his failure to comply with § 404(a)(1)(A), (B) and D), 11 US.C. §
1104(a)(1)(A) and (D), in the administration of his specific responsibilities which gave
rise to his status as a fiduciary; and (iii) he had knowledge of Defendant Welding’s
fiduciary breaches and failed to make reasonable efforts under the circumstances to
remedy such breaches.

21.  As adirect and proximate result of the breaches of fiduciary duties
committed by Defendant David Shields, and Defendant Welding, as described in
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Paragraphs 6-20 above, the Plan has suffered losses, including lost-opportunity income
which continues to accrue, for which Defendants David Shields and Welding are jointly
and severally liable pursuant to ERISA § 409, 29 U.S.C. § 1109.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Secretary prays for judgment:

A.  Ordering Defendants David Shields and Welding to restore to the Plan any
losses, including lost-opportunity costs, resulting from fiduciary breaches committed by
them or for which they are jointly and severally liable;

B.  Ordering Defendants David Shields and Welding to correct the prohibited
transactions in which they engaged or which they caused the Plan to engage;

C.  Permanently enjoining Defendants David Shields and Welding from
violating the provisions of Title I of ERISA;

D.  Permanently enjoining Defendant David Shields from serving as a fiduciary
of, or service provider, to any ERISA-covered employee benefit plan and removing him
from any positions he now holds as a fiduciary of the Plan;

E.  Removing Defendant Welding as the Plan Administrator of the Plan and
from any position it now holds as a fiduciary of the Plan.

F.  Appointing an independent fiduciary to distribute the Plan’s assets to the
participants and beneficiaries, terminate the Plan, and conclude any Plan-related matters
connected with the proper termination of the Plan;

G.  Requiring Defendants David Shields and Welding to be jointly and
severally liable for paying all costs associated with the appointment and retention of the
independent fiduciary;

H.  Requiring Defendants David Shields and Welding to cooperate with the
independent fiduciary;
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L Awarding the Secretary the costs of this action; and

J. Ordering such further relief as is appropriate and just.

DATED: September 25, 2013

Respectfully Submitted,
M. PATRICIA SMITH
Solicitor of Labor

JANET M. HEROLD
Regional Solicitor

DANIELLE L. JABERG
Counsel for ERISA

NORMAN E. GARCIA
Senior Trial Attorney

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES JUDGES

This case has been assigned to District Judge
Magistrate Judge is

George H. Wu and the assigned
Jacqueline Chooljian

The case number on all documents filed with the Court should read as follows:

2:13-CV-7261-GW (JCX)

Pursuant to General Order 05-07 of the United States District Court for the Central District of
California, the Magistrate Judge has been designated to hear discovery related motions.

All discovery related motions should be noticed on the calendar of the Magistrate Judge.

Clerk, U. S, District Court

October 1, 2013
Date

By MDAVIS
Deputy Clerk

NOTICE TO COUNSEL

A copy of this notice must be served with the summons and complaint on all defendants (if a removal action is
filed, a copy of this notice must be served on all plaintiffs).

Subsequent documents must be filed at the following location:

Western Division [C] Southern Division (] Eastern Division
312 N. Spring Street, G-8 411 West Fourth St., Ste 1053 3470 Twelfth Street, Room 134
Los Angeles, CA 90012 Santa Ana, CA 92701 Riverside, CA 92501

Failure to file at the proper location will result in your documents being returned to you.

CV-18 (08/13) NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES JUDGES



Name & Address:

Norman E. Garcia, Senior Trial Attorney
United States Department of Labor
Office of the Solicitor

90 Seventh Street, Suite 3-700

San Francisco, California 94103

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

THOMAS E. PEREZ, Secretary of Labor, UNITED
STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

i pmmmvtﬁ'lcv13-07261—6u&%

WELDING UNLIMITED, INC., a corporation;
DAVID R. SHIELDS, an individual; WELDING
UNLIMITED, INC. 401(K) PROFIT SHARING PLAN,
an employee pension benefit Plan

CASE NUMBER

SUMMONS
DEFENDANT(S).

We

TO: DEFENDANT(S):
A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within __21__ days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it), you

must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached Mcomplaint a amended complaint
O counterclaim [J cross-claim or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer
or motion must be served on the plaintiff’s attorney, Norman E. Garcia , whose address is

U.S. Dept. of Labor, Ofc. of the Solicitor, 90 7th St., Ste 3-700; San Francisco, CA 94103 _ [f you fail to do so,

judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file
your answer or motion with the court.

Dated: ocT -1 208

(Seal of the Court) 1221

[Use 60 days if the defendant is the United States or a United States agency, or is an officer or employee of the United States. Allowed
60 days by Rule 12(a)(3)].

CV-01A (1011 SUMMONS
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Norman E. Garcia, Senior Trial Attorney
United States Department of Labor
Office of the Solicitor

90 Seventh Street, Suite 3-700

San Francisco, California 94103

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

THOMAS E. PEREZ, Secretary of Labor, UNITED
STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

i PLAINTIFF(s)-.cv 13_07261, 1:
WELDING UNLIMITED, INC., a corporation;

DAVID R. SHIELDS, an individual; WELDING
UNLIMITED, INC. 401(K) PROFIT SHARING PLAN,
an employee pension benefit Plan

CASE NUMBER

SUMMONS
DEFENDANT(S).

TO: DEFENDANT(S):
A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within __ 21 _ days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it), you

must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached lifcomplaint (] amended complaint
0 counterclaim O3 cross-claim or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer
or motion must be served on the plaintiff’s attorney, Norman E. Garcia , whose address is

U.S. Dept. of Labor, Ofec. of the Solicitor, 90 7th $t., Ste 3-700; San Francisco, CA 94103 [f you fail to do so,

judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file
your answer or motion with the court.

Clerk, U.S. District Court

[Use 60 days if the defendant is the United States or a United States agency, or is an officer or employee of the United States. Allowed
60 days by Rule 12(a)(3)].
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